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“The ECB used its experience in the market as the groundwork for its role and relationships, and as a result has gained
credibility with market participants.”

Vision, Mission Statement
and Corporate Values
» Vision
To be recognised as a leading regulator for achieving optimum viability and competition in the Namibian Energy industry.

» Mission Statement
To regulate and control the Namibian ESI in the interest of all stakeholders with regard to price, quality and reliability

» Corporate Values:
» Professionalism
To conduct every task to a standard of excellence and to maintain the highest level of technical competence and personal integrity /
efficiency so as to ensure the satisfaction of all stakeholders.

» Integrity
To be accountable and act in accordance with government policy and accept full responsibility of all outcomes; to be transparent. open,
honest and fair in all dealings and communications with stakeholders.

» Innovation
To innovate through learning, teamwork and knowledge-sharing in order to remain competitive in the market and continue to deliver
excellent service.

» Sustainability
To ensure the endowment of Namibia’s energy resources are available to present and future generations by considering our economic,
environmental and social responsibility.
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Abbreviations/Acronyms
CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFL

Compact Fluorescent Lamp

CSP

Concentrating Solar Power (Solar Thermal)

DSM

Demand Side Management

DSMEE

Demand Side Management and Energy Efficiency

ECB

Electricity Control Board

EDI

Electricity Distribution Industry

EIA

Environmental Impact Assessment

Electricity Act

Electricity Act 2007 (Act No. 4 of 2007)

ERP

Enterprise Resource Planning

ESI

Electricity Supply Industry

HR

Human Resources

IPP

Independent Power Producer

IT

Information Technology

LA

Local Authority

LAS

Local Authority Surcharge

LRMC

Long Run Marginal Cost

M&V

Measurement and Verification

MME

Ministry of Mines and Energy

NIRP

National Integrated Resource Plan

NQA

Namibia Qualifications Authority

NTA

Namibia Training Authority

PPA

Power Purchase Agreement

RC

Regional Council

RED

Regional Electricity Distributor

RET

Renewable Energy Technology

SOE Act

State-owned Enterprises Governance Act (Act No. 2 of 2006)

SWH

Solar Water Heater

TRD

Technical Regulation Department

WEC

World Energy Council
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“As an indication of confidence in the
market, customers’ feedback, both unsolicited and obtained through surveys,
showed customers were predominantly
appreciative of the fact the ECB is open
and responsive even when their issues
are difficult to resolve.”

ECB Board Members

» Standing from left to right:
Mr. Gottlieb Hinda
Member of the Board, Finance & Audit Committee and Regulation Committee.

Mr. Siseho C. Simasiku
Chief Executive Officer, Ex officio Member of the Board

Mr. Fritz Jeske
Member of the Board, Finance & Audit Committee and Chairperson of the Regulation Committee.

Mr. Gersom Katjimune
Member of the Board, Human Resources & Remuneration Committee and Chairperson of the Finance & Audit Committee.

» Seated from left to right:
Mr. Jason Nandago
Board Chairperson, Member of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committee and Regulation Committee.

Mrs. Panduleni N. Shimutwikeni
Board Vice Chairperson and Chairperson of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committee.
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ECB Management

» From left to right:
Mr. Francois Robinson: Manager Regulatory Support Services
Mr. Pinehas Mutota: Manager Economic Regulation
Mr. Rojas Manyame: General Manager Regulation
Mr. Siseho C. Simasiku: Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Mara Uazenga: General Manager Finance and Administration
Dr. Maxwell Muyambo: Manager Technical Regulation
Ms. Damoline Muruko: Manager Corporate Communication and Legal Services
Mr. Kenneth !Gaoseb: Manager Human Resources
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“The ECB shall continually brave all the
challenges thrown its way and will position itself well for the future by crafting
strategies and executing tactical initiatives aimed at ensuring a well-functioning Namibian ESI.”

Chairperson’s Report
The year 2014 was an intense period of activity as we developed
and deployed new capabilities without missing a beat in our progress
towards our medium to long term deliverables. From the outset, the
Electricity Control Board (ECB) applied the principles published in its
compliance and enforcement instruments. The capabilities deployed
ensured regulated entities met their obligations and prioritised client
engagement as the pathway to compliance. The ECB acknowledges
that the utilities played their part by committing significant resources
to achieving compliance, and urges them to uphold the positive spirit.
In an attempt to strengthen this component, client workshops and
face-to-face training were conducted. These interventions will surely
go a long way in benefiting the Namibian Electricity Supply Industry
(ESI) end-users and transforming the landscape for years to come.
As an indication of confidence in the market, customers’ feedback,
both unsolicited and obtained through surveys, showed customers
were predominantly appreciative of the fact the ECB is open and
responsive even when their issues are difficult to resolve. The ECB
used its experience in the market as the groundwork for its role
and relationships, and as a result has gained credibility with market
participants. Equally, their advice has helped to anticipate and prepare
for challenges in the market.
On the international front, relationships became increasingly important as the ECB exchanged insights with various institutions from a range of
mature and emerging markets around the world. Statutory provisions require the ECB to protect certain information and to publish information.
In this regard, useful information was provided for private sector investment and trading decisions. Our data and information was also valuable
to government policy makers and their advisers and to other regulators. During the period under review, the ECB exchanged memoranda of
understanding with government agencies here at home, as well as at regional and Commonwealth level, to give effect to the principle that data
collected by it need not be collected again by others. The ECB has established its credentials as a competent and responsive regulatory authority.
The ECB shall continually brave all the challenges thrown its way and will position itself well for the future by crafting strategies and executing
tactical initiatives aimed at ensuring a well-functioning Namibian ESI.

9

“Maintaining consistency in terms of
networking and collaboration with key
government ministries, agencies and institutions as well as the private sector on
sectoral and industry issues is also at the
top of the agenda.”

CEO’s Report

The aim of regulation, amongst others, is to promote competition, protect customers’ rights and encourage network expansion in order to realise
Government’s overall objectives as stated in the White Paper on Energy Policy of 1998. In an attempt to fulfil this noble objective during the
period under review, the ECB implemented best practices in governance and consistently embraced the values of accountability, predictability,
transparency, teamwork and public involvement in its work.
Tariff setting is a core function of the ECB. Since tariffs can adversely affect especially the end-user, the ECB put in place additional mechanisms
that ensured that the regulated entities prepared their submissions in such a way that all the required information was available. That led to an
overall easing in tariff increases for the end-user, and therefore ensured continued economic productivity.
The ECB received numerous complaints and disputes between licensees and customers during the period under review. As a direct response
and complimenting its internal mechanisms, the ECB fully implemented a Complaints Handling Procedure premised on the principle that local
remedies must first be exhausted with the licensee before it intervenes. In addition the ECB also endeavoured to produce a booklet detailing its
license application procedure, drawing from the multiple enquiries received.
One of the strategic goals of the ECB is to encourage private sector investment and participation in securing electricity supply in the country.
The ECB continued to engage local and international investors who endeavoured towards the attainment of this goal, which is of national
importance if Vision 2030 and future national developmental programmes are to be achieved.
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Efforts to communicate, educate and empower the public on regulatory matters of the Namibian ESI were continued through the traditional
mass media channels. The ECB hopes to maximise this role with the appointment of the Public Relation Officer (PRO) to attain improved public
image and better inform the public. Maintaining consistency in terms of networking and collaboration with key government ministries, agencies
and institutions as well as the private sector on sectoral and industry issues is also at the top of the agenda.
There was an increase in the number of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) events sponsored by the ECB during the period under review. This
commitment totalling over one million Namibia dollars was targeted towards education, community development, social welfare and capacity
and skills development, and produced visible results in the four corners of the Republic where the benefactors reside.
Internal capacity building, especially on regulatory processes, was strengthened through secondment and participation in a number of local,
regional and international meetings and workshops.
As announced, I will retire from the ECB this year. This makes me even more focused on putting the ECB in the strongest position for the future
and ensuring a smooth transition for the next CEO.
I am grateful for the support of exceptional leaders, Board members and employees throughout my career. They have been generous with their
advice and hard work. Such collaboration enabled the ECB to accomplish many things since its inception in the year 2000.
I have tried throughout my career to anticipate what is coming and what is possible, never taking success for granted. That has often caused
me to challenge conventional wisdom. I’ve also learned to listen for what is really on people’s minds and to foster a performance culture that
empowers people and drives results through collaboration. I have long focused on developing strong leaders, and am proud of the growing
number of highly effective leaders in this institution and industry whose foundation I fortified.
Looking forward, the success of the ECB depends on the contributions of its many talented and hardworking staff. I thank everyone in the ECB
for their service and commitment. As the legislated responsibilities of the Regulator continue to evolve and new tasks arise, complete them
with the trademark energy, drive and enthusiasm.

12

“In its quest to adhere to best practices
and sound governance principles, the
ECB is continuously evaluating itself
and its effectiveness.”

1. Corporate Information and
Developments
1.1

Corporate Governance

1.1.1

Introduction

The ECB is committed to complying with principles of good corporate governance and applicable legislation most notably the Electricity Act and
the State-owned Enterprises (SOE) Governance Act. Under this heading, the ECB sets out the mechanisms it will be using to ensure optimum
corporate governance within a public body. In addition to the instruments below, the ECB is investigating the potential application of the
Corporate Governance Code for Namibia and its guidance on best practice principles.  The ECB believes that its corporate governance approach
supports its efforts to consistently deliver excellence of service and achieving its goals and objectives.  In its quest to adhere to best practices
and sound governance principles, the ECB is continuously evaluating itself and its effectiveness through these mechanisms.

1.1.2

Declaration of Interest

In complying with the Electricity Act, read with the SOE Act, all Board members must declare their interest, if any, at the start of each meeting
of the ECB. “Declaration of Interest” is thus a standing item on each agenda for Board and committee meetings. Section 9 of the Electricity
Act requires disclosure of interest where a Board member, his/her spouse or any company, close corporation or partnership of which a Board
member or his/her spouse is a director shareholder, member or partner, is in any way directly or indirectly interested in a contract entered into
or proposed to be entered into by the ECB which may cause a conflict of interest.  A Board member is required to disclose the nature of the
interest and must withdraw from the meeting to enable the remaining members to discuss the matter and to decide whether the interest is of
such a nature that such disclosing member must withdraw from further participating in the matter. Disclosures must be minuted. It is a criminal
offence if a Board member fails to disclose such interest.

1.1.3

Governance and Performance Agreements

In line with sections 17 and 18 of the SOE Act, the ECB has: (a) prepared a governance agreement to be concluded between our portfolio
Minister and the Board in relation to the issues stipulated in said section 17; and (b) prepared performance agreements to be concluded
between our portfolio Minister and individual Board members as anticipated in said section 18. Part and parcel hereto, the ECB has also
developed key performance areas according to which the performance of Board members will be measured.

1.1.4

Codes of Practice and Conduct

In 2010, the ECB established a Board Charter. The Board Charter guides Board and committee members on how to conduct themselves
when executing their duties. The Board Charter covers key aspects such as role and responsibilities of the Board, duties of Board members,
composition of Board and Board committees, procedural matters regarding Board and committee meetings, delegations, disclosure of interest
and annual performance evaluations. The ECB regularly reviews the Charter to ensure that it stays relevant.
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1.1.5

Appointment of Board Members and Information about the Board

Below is a table indicating the appointment dates and current terms of the Board Members:
Date of First

Date of Current

Appointment

Appointment

Chairperson

15 March 2000

14 December 2011

4 years

Ms Panduleni Shimutwikeni

Vice-Chairperson

14 December 2007

14 December 2011

4 years

Mr Siseho Simasiku

Ex-officio member*

-

-

-

Mr Gottlieb Hinda

Member

17 March 2011

14 December 2011

4 years

Mr Fritz Jeske

Member

4 November 2002

14 December 2011

4 years

Mr Gersom Katjimune

Member

4 November 2002

14 December 2011

4 years

Board Member

Status

Mr Jason Nandago

Term

*In terms of section 11(2)(a) of the Electricity Act, the ECB’s CEO is an ex officio member of the Board but has no right to vote.
Table 1: Board Members
In terms of section 7(1) of the Electricity Act, the Board is required to meet at least once every three months.  During the period covered by
this Annual Report (1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014), the Board had eight meetings of which three were ordinary meetings and five were special
meetings. During the reporting period, the Board members and their attendance at Board meetings of the ECB were as follows:
ELECTRICITY CONTROL BOARD MEETINGS 2013/14
Board Member

Status

Meetings Attended

Mr Jason Nandago

Chairperson

4

Ms Panduleni Shimutwikeni

Vice-Chairperson

4

Mr Siseho Simasiku

Ex-officio member

5

Mr Gottlieb Hinda

Member

7

Mr Fritz Jeske

Member

7

Mr Gersom Katjimune

Member

6

Table 2: Board Meetings

1.1.6

Constitution of Board Committees

The ECB has established the Board committees and appointed thereto the Board members indicated in the table below:
ELECTRICITY CONTROL BOARD COMMITTEES
Finance, Audit and Risk Committee

Regulation Committee

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

Mr Gersom Katjimune (Chairperson)

Mr Fritz Jeske (Chairperson)

Ms Panduleni Shimutwikeni (Chairperson)

Mr Gottlieb Hinda (member)

Mr Gottlieb Hinda (member)

Mr Gersom Katjimune (member)

Mr Fritz Jeske (member)

Mr Jason Nandago (member)

Mr Jason Nandago (member)

CEO (ex officio member)*

CEO (ex officio member)*

CEO (ex officio member)*

* The CEO of the ECB is an ex officio member of all the committees.
Table 3: Board Committees
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1.2

Legislative Mandate

There have been no significant changes in the ECB’s legislative mandate during the reporting period.  Although the current Electricity Act is under
revision, the Electricity Act continues to apply and guide the ECB in the performance of its functions. In terms of the Electricity Act, the main
objectives of the ECB are, in accordance with prevailing Government policy, to:
•

exercise control over and regulate the provision, use and consumption of electricity in Namibia;

•

oversee the efficient functioning and development of the electricity industry and security of electricity provision;

•

ensure the efficient provision of electricity;

•

ensure a competitive environment in the electricity industry in Namibia with such restrictions as may be necessary for the security of
electricity provision and other public interest; and

•

promote private sector investment in the electricity industry.

The Electricity Act establishes a national regulatory framework for the electricity supply industry and makes the Electricity Control Board the
custodian and enforcer of the national electricity regulatory framework. The Electricity Act provides for a licensing system for operators in the
electricity industry (import, export, generation, trading, transmission, distribution and supply); it provides for independent tariff regulation by
the ECB and determines the rights and obligations of licensees and customers.
During the reporting period, the ECB progressively formalised its relationship with stakeholders and other regulators especially as regards
cross-cutting regulatory and industry issues. To this end, the ECB entered into memoranda of understanding with other institutions in order to
coordinate and harmonise activities within each institution’s mandate, clarify roles and responsibilities with regard to matters of mutual interest
and create a platform for structured interaction between the institutions.
The ECB further continued to build on and extend its regulatory mandate by means of appropriate regulatory instruments. The following sections
provide more information with regard hereto.

1.2.1

Future Legislative Reforms

Work on the intended legislative reforms in the electricity and energy industry is ongoing. The ECB, in cooperation with its stakeholders, further
refined and finalised these reforms.  The major aspects of these reforms aim at: (a) transforming the ECB from an electricity sector regulator
into a multiple energy sector regulator (to wit electricity, gas and other relevant energy sectors allocated to the energy regulator); and (b)
creating a separate detailed statutory framework for relevant energy sectors such as electricity and gas. The initial outcomes hereof would be
two separate bills, namely:

The Namibia Energy Regulatory Authority Bill
In terms of this Bill, the ECB will be transformed into an energy regulator whose duty it will be to oversee the energy sectors allocated to it
under separate energy specific laws (such as the Electricity Act).  A major new aspect to be introduced by this Bill is the establishment of a
specialised Energy Tribunal in the energy sector. The objective of the Energy Tribunal would be to deal with disputes and appeals lodged with
it under energy-specific sector laws (for example the anticipated Gas and Electricity Acts).

The Electricity Bill
This Bill will deal exclusively with the electricity supply industry. The energy regulator will remain the independent regulator of electricity tariffs.
The licensing regime will fall exclusively within the domain of the energy regulator, to be regulated subject to Government policy and Ministerial
guidance.  During the revision of the regulatory framework for electricity, specific attention was paid to effective and efficient enforcement
mechanisms. The new Bill will broaden the scope for both voluntary and compulsory enforcement mechanisms so as to enable to energy
regulator to ensure compliance with the Bill and supplementary instruments such as licence conditions, rules, codes and standards. The Bill
will further create a more formalised foundation for market reform and market structures to ensure the growth and modernisation of the ESI.
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1.2.2

Legal Instruments

In the table below a summary is provided of past, current and anticipated legal instruments through which the regulator and the electricity
industry are regulated:
No

NAME OF INSTRUMENT

NATURE

STATUS

A

National Legislation

A1

Electricity Act, 2 of 2000

National statute

Repealed

A2

Electricity Act, 4 of 2007

National statute

In operation

A3

Namibia Energy Regulatory Authority Bill, 2014

National statute

Draft Bill

A4

Electricity Bill, 2014

National statute

Draft Bill

B

Government Gazette Notices

B1

Imposition of Levy on Electricity under Electricity
Act

Notice by Minister in
Government Gazette

Current operational ECB levy on electricity

C

Regulations

C1

Electricity Regulations: Administrative, 2000

Ministerial regulations

Repealed

C2

Electricity Regulations: Administrative, 2011

Ministerial regulations

In operation

D

ECB Rules, Codes and Standards

D1

Technical Rules

ECB rules

Awaiting certification by Ministry of Justice

D2

Economic Rules

ECB rules

Awaiting certification by Ministry of Justice

D3

Resale Rules

ECB rules

Awaiting certification by Ministry of Justice

D4

Safety Code

ECB code

In operation

D5

Quality of Supply and Services Standards

Standard

In operation

D6

Connection Charge Policy

ECB rules

Draft format

D7

Transmission Grid Code

ECB Code

Awaiting certification by Ministry of Justice

D8

Distribution Grid Code

ECB Code

Draft format

D9

Net Metering Rules

ECB rules

Draft format

D11

REFIT Rules

ECB rules

Draft format

D12

Support Tariff Fund and Rules

ECB rules

Initial drafting stage

E

ECB Internal Rules
ECB Complaints Procedure (November 2010)

Internal ECB procedure

Approved by means of ECB Board
resolution

Mediation Procedures

Internal ECB procedure

Approved by means of ECB Board
resolution

Public Hearing Procedural Rules

Internal ECB procedure

Approved by means of ECB Board
resolution

Confidentiality Procedures

Internal ECB Procedure

E1
E2
E3
E4

Initial drafting stage

Other
Gas Bill

National statute

Being drafted

Wiremen’s Licensinge

National statute

Draft format

Table 4: Legal Instruments
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1.3

Human Capital Management

1.3.1

Staffing

Since its inception in 2000, the ECB has strived to attract the best talent with the right skills. With the subsequent organisational growth
throughout the years the ECB has developed a comprehensive employee management strategy to develop critical skills and to assist its
employees to grow professionally. The ECB depends on motivated and technically skilled employees to deliver its mandate as defined in the
Energy White Paper of 1998.
Since 2004 the ECB has faced turnover of key employees that adversely affected its productivity. The ECB believes that a successful, sustainable
organization is ultimately dependent on the quality and strength of its people. The aim is to attract and retain key talent in order to build
organisational competencies and leadership capacity for long-term growth and to cement the organisation‘s reputation as an employer of
choice. For the period of 2008/2009 and 2009/2010 female representation has dropped due to the fact that more male employees were
recruited during that period. Nevertheless, the gap between the number of female and male started to close as from 2010/2011 to 2013/2014.

Figure 1: Staffing Composition by Gender

1.3.2

New Appointments

The following appointments were made during the period under review:
•

Tariff Analyst

•

Public Relations Officer

•

Statistician

•

2x Compliance Monitoring Engineers

1.3.3

Termination of Service

The following positions became vacant during the period under review:
•

Chief Executive Officer

•

Manager: Corporate & Legal Services

1.3.4

Employees Wellness

The ECB strives to maintain a healthy work environment via its wellness programme initiatives and for the period under review various
interventions were implemented. Wellness processes such as the management of chronic illness and HIV/AIDS awareness programmes are
positioning the ECB as a caring employer that ensures work-life balance of its human capital. Through the ECB’s medical aid service provider its
employees have access to counselling and advisory services for wellness and health, HIV/AIDS, critical incident management, substance abuse,
depression and stress. The ECB has also started educating employees on personal financial management.
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The ECB will continue to offer wellness programmes to employees that create health awareness. Activities beyond work are encouraged, such
as running or cycling activities. Employee participation at these events has increased over the last few years. The ECB will continue to offer these
sponsorships. For the period under review, to amplify that the ECB is serious on employee wellness, the medical contributions of all the staff
members are being fully funded by the ECB.

1.3.5

Training and Development

The ECB continues to enhance its learning and development proposition to its employees through offering training. Considerable progress has
been made in developing leadership and management skills of all the employees. Through these programmes, staff develop their skills through
accredited training that guarantees both quality assurance and recognition of the training. The development of skills in core electricity sector and
regulatory topics is critical to build a competitive advantage through delivery of high quality outputs to meet industry requirements. The ECB has
forged strategic alliances with key training institutions such as:
•

Public Utility Research Center (PURC), at the University of Florida Warrington College of Business

•

Management Programme in Infrastructure Reform and Regulation, University of Cape Town Business School

•

Galilee International Management Institute, Israel

•

North - West University, South Africa ( Energy Studies)   

•

University of Stellenbosch (Executive Management Programmes)

•

University of Johannesburg (B.Com Hons. in Energy Studies)

The key milestone achieved was the awarding of bursaries to deserving students. To date the ECB has employed two students who successfully
completed their studies in Electrical Engineering and Accounting and Finance respectively.
For the period under review some N$1.6 million was spent on training and development.

1.3.6

Key Human Resources Department Projects Completed

Employee Perception Survey
The objective of the Employee Perception Survey was:
•

to measure, clarify and identify the level of satisfaction of ECB’s employees and to establish reasons for any low satisfaction areas;

•

to determine the employees’ feelings about the direction the organisation wants to take and their role in this regard;

•

to gauge leadership effectiveness by providing an opportunity for employees to rate the effectiveness of their leaders; and

•

to gather suggestions or recommendations from employees on what can be done to make the ECB a better place to work.

All 22 employees at ECB took part in the survey (except the executive management team) which represents a response rate of 100%. For the
ECB, its employees are its most important asset to steer the organisation to greater heights and therefore it started with the premise first to
strengthen its employees’ engagement. It is generally accepted that more engaged employees deliver better quality work and the creation of
a work environment promoting a high performance culture is a crucial element going forward. The ECB therefore also measures a number of
other parameters in its annual employee perception survey and initiates improvement actions. These actions will enable the ECB to evolve into
a highly productive organisation.

Organizational Design Project
The key strategic objectives of this project included writing job descriptions for all the positions on the organisational structure, evaluating/
grading such positions on the Patterson Job Evaluation System, benchmarking the remuneration and benefits with other state owned enterprises
and regulators and recommending a remuneration structure and retention strategies to retain staff to fulfil the objectives of the organization.
The ECB was faced with inaccurate existing job duties and responsibilities of positions as well as an unaligned grading structure which was
improved during this exercise.

Skills Audit Project
The skills audit project was introduced for identifying employees’ skills and comparing the skills required by the ECB now and in the future so
that the skill shortfall or surplus can be determined and addressed. A key outcome of the skills audit was to determine training needs so that
ECB can improve its skills and knowledge. In view of the latter, ECB therefore will be in a better position to achieve the following to mention
but a few:
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•

know where to improve;

•

better planned and more focused training and development;

•

better defined recruitment needs;

•

easier staff placement decisions; and

•

enabling career pathing and succession planning.

The first phase of this project is to make recommendations for the remedial action designed to reduce the skills gaps with due regard to the
operational and strategic objectives.

1.4

Public Relations & Stakeholder Management

1.4.1

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The ECB boasts a comprehensive Corporate Social Responsibility strategy. Its CSR footprint spans education, community development, social
welfare and capacity and skills development. The institution is proud that some of its CSR initiatives have produced visible results, with a positive
impact on individuals and communities.

Education

ECB CEO Siseho Simasiku (Right) handing over a cheque to a representative of the Chris Junior Private School.
The ECB has invested in two previously disadvantaged pupils at the Chris Junior Private School located in the Oshikoto region. Before the ECB’s
intervention, the two pupils from poor backgrounds – a male and female – produced below average results. But with the ECB’s full sponsorship
covering their tuition, hostel fees and clothing, the two excelled beyond expectation much to the surprise of the teaching staff and family and
friends.
“The school has record of the improvement of the two learners since the ECB stepped in. Anybody is welcome to take a look at their books.
Even their families are happy. They are now more confident, and they will go very far in life” said the principal Sarah Wamambo about the ECB’s
assistance.
The ECB agreed to sponsor the learners’ junior secondary education. The two will proceed to secondary in 2015.
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At tertiary level, the ECB contributed to the launch of the Polytechnic of Namibia SRC Student Assistance Fund. The Fund’s objects are:
•

to financially assist students that cannot afford to settle their accounts;

•

to serve as an emergency fund to assist students when they are faced with problems relating to their academics; and

•

to promote student involvement in orientation activities on campus.

Community Development
A Cultural Empowerment, Social Education and Advocacy Centre has the potential to transform a community, whether in Africa or any part of the
world. That has been the wish of the inhabitants of Zone village in Mpungu constituency of Kavango West for many years until the ECB arrived on
the scene. Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Regulator responded in the affirmative when approached with a request to assist with the
construction of the centre, because the benefits would go a long way in cementing change for the inhabitants of Zone village and the country
in general. The decision to invest in the centre was also informed by its capacity to be sustainable in the long term.

Social Welfare
Namibia exclaimed with pride when FIFA announced that the Bullet Musical Group would perform at the 2014 Soccer World Cup which took
place in Brazil. But that chorus soon faded, when the group indicated that it lacked the financial resources to undertake the trip to the LatinAmerican country. The ECB responded positively and passionately by contributing financially, recognising the qualities of the members of the
group as Namibian ambassadors to the international showpiece. Not only did the opportunity showcase Namibian arts and culture, but inspired
the preservation of the Namibian identity and heritage.

Members of the Bullet ya Kaoko musical group proudly displaying the Namibian flag.

Capacity and skills development
The Electricity Control Board donated N$150 000 as seed funding towards the establishment of the Namibia Energy Institute (NEI). The Regulator
was the first to respond to an appeal by the Ministry of Mines and Energy to provide financial support for the establishment of the NEI, which
replaced the Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Institute (REEEI). The Regulator deemed it fit to support the noble idea, because the NEI
will undoubtedly contribute to Namibia’s industrialisation through its four centres namely:
•

Centre for Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency;

•

Centre for Petroleum;

•

Centre for Electricity Supply; and

•

Centre for Nuclear Sciences.
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Each Centre will in turn focus on a different field related to the energy sector, allowing the NEI to consolidate research and development across
the energy field in Namibia beyond the focus of its predecessor. The NEI will provide services such as:
•

Research and Development;

•

Training and Capacity Building;

•

Consultancy and Advisory Services; and

•

Energy Projects Management.

ECB GM for Regulation, Rojas Manyame (Right), handing over the cheque on behalf of CEO Siseho Simasiku.

1.4.2

Status Report on Strategic Plan Projects

The Table below lists the Strategic Plan Projects undertaken during the period under review, and their degree of completion.
Project Name

Completed

Implementation

Develop & implement helpdesk function for improved relations and customer service

20%

Inception phase

Undertake Stakeholder Survey

20%

Inception phase

Improve ECB newsletter

80%

In final phase

Monitor licensee customer satisfaction

20%

Inception phase

Table 5: PR & Stakeholder Management Projects

1.5

Information Technology

With the overarching goal of automating as many manual processes as possible the ECB embarked on a few initiatives during the period under
review.
Firstly, cheque payments were phased out and the majority of payments were executed via a secure electronic payment platform. The new
payment process strictly adheres to the ECB’s Standing Financial Instructions Policy. Electronic payments have made the payments faster and
more transparent.
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Secondly, a Computerised License Evaluation and Evaluation Management System was developed and implemented. It will be used by license
applicants to apply for all types of licenses (generation, distribution, import, export et al). In addition, it will also be used by the ECB to
evaluate new applications. Previously license applications were submitted in hard copy files which were moved from office to office during the
evaluation. This manual evaluation process was lengthy and cumbersome.
A Renewable Energy GIS Mapping system was developed, including various maps indicating the potential and locations of various renewable
energy sources (solar, wind, biomass, hydro etc.) in Namibia. In addition, it also maps the entire transmission system, including power line
voltages and substations as well as the boundaries for the REDs.
The ECB website was given a facelift, it now has a cleaner, more modern look and the menus were redesigned to make it easier for website
users to find information. In terms of network accessibility, wireless access is now available throughout the entire ECB premises, this has
enhanced the mobility of ECB staff.
Since the inception of the ECB, IT has grown in leaps and bounds, more so over the past 5 years. Initially the ECB did not have a dedicated IT
professional to oversee IT operations and implement IT strategy. This function was the responsibility of ECB staff members who had expertise
in other fields and also by external consultants. The external consultants provided intermittent support as they did not operate from the ECB
premises and had to be called in when needed. This situation was not sustainable as in-house IT expertise was needed. Nevertheless a good
foundation was set; there was an active website, a Local Area Network with shared folders and internet access was in place and the ECB staff
had the required hardware and software to carry out their tasks. An IT Specialist was appointed in October 2010; he was tasked with managing
the ECB’s IT operations and strategy and improving the accessibility and reliability of the ECB’s IT resources.
In addition to the above, the following initiatives have been successfully implemented:
•

New File Server Installed, Server room upgraded;

•

IT Policy Creation & Enforcement;

•

Intranet, Stock Control System implemented;

•

Additional modules added to HR and ERP suites;

•

Paperless Board Meetings;

•

Automated off-site backup; and

•

Regular upgrading of internet capacity.

Going forward, the ECB will look at how IT can be used to improve the efficiency and productivity of ECB staff. One of the areas for improvement
is how information is organized and stored. There is a need to implement a uniform filing system (physical & electronic) across the organisation.
In addition, there is also a need to expand the ECB’s IT capacity as the over-reliance on the IT Specialist poses a risk to the organisation. New
technologies present both opportunities and threats; thus they should be monitored closely to mitigate any negative impact and exploited in
order to assist the ECB in achieving its strategic goals.

1.6

Regional and International Activities

1.6.1

RERA Activities

The ECB continued to actively participate in all scheduled RERA events and activities, including subcommittee meetings held in Victoria Falls in
Zimbabwe in September 2013 and the Annual General Meeting held in Maputo, Mozambique in November 2013.
Special highlights for the ECB included chairing the three subcommittees, namely, Economic, Legal and Technical and coordinating Namibia’s
participation in the SADC RERA Mini-grids Project in consultation with RERA, Project Consultants and Namibian ESI stakeholders. Using Namibia
and Zimbabwe as the selected countries for case studies, the project established a framework for the support that countries can provide for
investment and operation of mini-grids and was sponsored through support of the Africa-EU Renewable Energy Cooperation Programme (RECP),
managed by the European Union Energy Initiative Partnership Dialogue Facility (EUEI PDF).
In essence, the four dimensions of the framework are illustrated in Figure 2 below.
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Figure 2: SADC Mini-grids Investment Framework

1.6.2

African Forum for Utility Regulators (AFUR)

As a member of AFUR, the ECB continued to support co-operation amongst utility regulators on the African continent in support of Africa’s
growth and socio-economic development. The ECB have been recently appointed as a member of the Energy Sectorial Committee (ESC). The
primary role of the ESC are to serve as the work engines of AFUR in promoting and facilitating wider participation as well as co-operation in the
development and implementation of the organisation’s work programme across the utility sectors.
Transparency and openness of the regulatory process is very crucial for African regulators, where stakeholders have the perception that there
is potential for regulatory “capture” from politicians and the regulated industry. It is therefore important for regulators to gain the needed
stakeholder confidence and acceptance by maintaining a high degree of openness and transparency in their decision making process. This
implies that the necessary mechanisms and structures for ensuring transparency must be firmly embedded in the regulatory framework.
It is in this light that AFUR chose the above theme for its 10th Annual Conference held in Tanzania, April 2013 to provide a platform for critical
examination of the practical challenges which confront regulators in Africa’s infrastructure sector.
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1.6.3

World Energy Council

The ECB is a member of the National World Energy Council Member Committee. The committee aims to promote and inform national energy
strategy with regard to the provision of energy in Namibia, through optimum and unbiased ranking of energy resources in Namibia, increasing
electricity generation capacity, and expansion of transmission and distribution networks.
The National Committee is chaired by Mr Simasiku the CEO of ECB. In October 2013 the ECB attended the WEC executive assembly and the 22nd
World Energy Congress in Daegu, Korea. In addition the ECB participated in all the national WEC activities held during the year under review.
In February 2014 the National Committee made a presentation at the World Energy Council Africa Regional Meeting on the pilot study for
Village Inventory and Energy Access in Namibia. The objective of this WEC Knowledge Network is to make a practical contribution to on-going
efforts focused on meeting the Millennium Developmental Goals by the international governmental and business communities, by identifying
stakeholders, conducting village inventories, mapping out village clusters with similar opportunities and challenges to achieve economies of
scale and increase operational efficiencies.
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“The regulation of electricity tariffs is
one of the principal activities of the ECB.
All electricity tariffs charged by utilities
are regulated.”

2. Economic Regulation
2.1

Tariffs

Tariff setting is conducted in accordance with the White Paper on Energy Policy of 1998, which states that tariffs should be cost reflective, reflect
the long-run marginal cost of supply, and be based on sound economic principles.
The regulation of electricity tariffs is one of the principal activities of the ECB. All electricity tariffs charged by utilities are regulated. The
tariffs are determined based on a utility’s allowed revenue requirement, including a regulated return on assets used for electricity generation,
transmission, distribution and supply. The tariff methodology applied by the ECB is known as a “cost plus” methodology. This implies that the
revenue requirement (i.e. the cost) of a utility plus a regulated return (i.e. the weighted average cost of capital) determines the end-user tariff.
The revenue requirement includes all allowable costs of the utilities to cover the cost of supply including the primary energy, energy imports,
bulk purchases, operating and maintenance costs, customer service cost, overheads, asset-related costs and investment costs. In determining the
Namibian electricity tariff levels, the ECB consults and takes into consideration the expectations of key stakeholders including the Government,
private sector and consumers. Before approving a tariff the regulator conducts an assessment of the likely impacts that tariffs may have on the
end-consumers and the Namibian economy at large. Each utility needs to have its tariff levels approved by the ECB Board before they may be
implemented, and this process repeats itself on an annual basis.

2.1.1

Approved tariffs

For the financial period 2013/2014, the ECB granted NamPower an effective average tariff increase of 13.00% which includes a 2.78% long-run
marginal cost (LRMC) contribution which amounts to some N$ 84 million. The LRMC portion was awarded to ensure that NamPower remains
on the LRMC price path and to enable the utility to build sufficient reserves to protect the Namibian consumer against future price shocks. The
LRMC amount remained ring fenced within NamPower and is reported to the regulator on an annual basis.
In order to relieve the impact of high tariff on customers the Ministry of Mines and Energy made available an amount of N$ 20 million from
the National Energy Fund – Electricity Levy and an additional N$ 40 million reduction in the long run marginal cost (LRMC) was allowed thus
contributing to the overall reduction of the anticipated increase in tariffs.
Accordingly NamPower was awarded a tariff increase that is sufficient to cover the allowed revenue requirement for the financial period
2013/2014 which translates into cost reflective tariffs allowed for NamPower.
Distribution utilities which include Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs) and Local Authorities were granted tariff increases according to their
specific revenue requirements.
Over the past years, the ECB has ensured that electricity tariffs are consistent with and reflective of the following three main regulatory
objectives:
•

equitably rewarding of investors (recovery of allowable cost of supply plus the regulated rate of return) while keeping prices affordable
to consumers;

•

ensuring quality of supply and service, taking cognisance of different quality standards and associated costs; and

•

maximising operational efficiency through restructuring and performance evaluation and monitoring.

Figure 3 depicts the projected electricity price path between 2012/2013 and 2019/2020.
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Figure 3: Wholesale Electricity Price Path
In general once tariffs have reached cost reflectivity they will reflect the long-run marginal cost of supply. The LRMC includes the cost of
introducing new generation projects into the Namibian electricity mix and is to incentivize additional investments in the sector.
During the year under review, Namibia continued to be a net importer of electricity. It is expected that this situation will change once new
generation capacity is added to the existing power stations, as envisaged in the National Integrated Resource Plan (NIRP). In 2013/2014
Namibia imported between 50-70 % of its electrical energy requirements from countries in the SADC region depending on the availability of
water at Ruacana Power Station. Although the installed capacity was increased with an additional unit of 85 MW to a total installed capacity of
334 MW electricity output is still low due to drought conditions experienced during the review period.
Although a number of generation plants are planned, most of these plants will only start generating after 2017 due to construction lead times.
The current ZESA contract will expire in 2014 leaving Namibia with a capacity shortage of 150MW. If no alternative supplier can be found in the
short run, Namibia will have to buy this energy on the emergency market from the region at emergency tariffs which are very expensive. This
will create price shocks to the Namibian economy if not planned for properly.

Figure 4: Percentage share of energy sources
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GENERATION

MWh

% Energy Supply

Ruacana

1 159 175

31%

Van Eck

26 764

1%

Paratus

0

0%

Anixas

376

0%

1 186 316

32%

Eskom

420 123

11%

Zesco

438 000

12%

ZESA

1 314 000

35%

384 560

10%

2 556 683

68%

Local Power Stations

Total local generation

IMPORTS

Aggreko
Total imports

Table 6: Share of Local Generation and Import - Energy and percentage

Figure 5: Percentage share of Local vs Import - Energy
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Figure 6: Impact of Imports on Electricity Tariffs in Namibia – Energy Cost Component

Figure 7: Impact of Imports on Electricity Tariffs in Namibia – Average Generation Tariff
In 2013/2014 Namibia imported some 68% of its electricity requirements. During that period, the average tariff of imports was higher than
the Namibian local bulk generation tariff. This implies that the end-user tariff is substantially determined by imports which the ECB has little
influence over. In addition to cost due to imported electricity, local tariffs are driven by following factors:
•

the need for NamPower tariffs to remain cost reflective;

•

the need for additional investments in the generation sector;

•

increases in the prices of commodities and primary energy sources such as oil and coal;

•

the re-evaluation of NamPower assets which occurs every five years; and

•

an increase in average bulk cost of import energy.

Cost Reflectivity of Tariffs
During the period under review, NamPower was granted a cost reflective tariff as per the Cabinet directive (Cabinet decision 21/20.09.05/006.)
which states that the utility tariffs should reach cost reflectivity by 2010/2011 and remain so thereafter.
Due to shortage of electricity supply in the country and the region, it is projected that the tariff in Namibia will keep increasing in order to meet
and cover the high import costs of electricity. In order to contain the high increases efforts such as the contribution from the National Energy
Fund will go a long way in cushioning high tariff increases to the consumers.
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Government is encouraged to make further contributions to electricity infrastructure development. Government contributions to the Caprivi link
resulted in a reduced tariff to the customers. A reduction of the LRMC tariff can be achieved if Government commits to grant fund some of the
major projects such as Kudu power station.
The ECB has allowed tariff increases of distribution utilities to remain cost reflective in those cases where cost reflectivity has already been
reached, and to enable others to reach cost reflectivity. This presented a particular challenge to the ECB, mainly because of the high local
authority surcharges in some areas as well as the distorted tariffs which still exist amongst different distribution utilities.

2.2

Local Authority Surcharge

The introduction of the REDs and the resulting handover of the electricity distribution function to such REDs had the potential to significantly
impact on the financial positions of Local Authorities (LAs) and Regional Councils (RCs). Previously, LAs had used the revenues from electricity
sales not only to cover the cost of electricity purchases and distribution but also to cross-subsidise other municipal services. The surplus
contributed some N$213 million per year to the revenues of local government and was a significant source of income to the LAs/RCs.
The Local Authority Surcharge was created to financially support LAs/RCs after they handed over the electricity supply function to the newly
formed REDs. The initial charge was based on the actual difference between revenue and costs as reflected in the ring-fenced electricity
accounts. This is consistent with Government policy that LAs and RCs should not be adversely affected when they joined a RED.
As agreed to with relevant ESI stakeholders, the original LA Surcharge is a fixed dollar amount per year, and has remained so over the past 7
years. Currently, the LA Surcharge is added to the electricity tariffs and collected by the REDs on behalf of the relevant LA/RC.
During the period under review some distribution licensee approached the ECB to convert the LA Surcharge to a cent per kWh charge which
meant that the total amount will be based on sale volumes in a particular LA area. In order to keep tariffs low Erongo RED committed to
subsidise half (approximately N$ 23 million) of the LA Surcharge to shareholders. This meant that only half of the Surcharge was being passed
on to the customers while the other half was being subsidised by the Shareholders of Erongo RED.
The regulator intends to revise the LA Surcharge methodology in the near future.

2.3

Transformation of the Single Buyer Market Model

Figure 8: Proposed Modified Single Buyer Market Model
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The Modified Single Buyer Model is aimed at securing energy supply security and private sector participation in the electricity generation
sector. During the period under review, NamPower remained Namibia’s Single Buyer, and is the only utility licensed to import, export and trade
electricity. This also implies that NamPower is the only off taker of electricity sourced from any Independent Power Producer (IPP). The Modified
Single Buyer Model will allow IPPs to sell electricity to large power users such as REDs, Local Authorities and Mines.
The process of finalising and implementing the “Modified” Single Buyer Model is on-going. During the period under review, little progress was
made in implementing this new market model. This was mainly due to the structural changes that are still required to transform the ECB into a
multi-sectoral energy regulator. It is envisaged that the market model will be defined as part of the new regulatory legislation, which will also
make it easier to implement.

2.4

Economic Regulation Projects

In the year under review, the following projects as identified in the ECB’s current Strategic Plan were implemented:

2.4.1

National Connection Charge Policy

A national connection charge policy was approved by the Board and presented to the Minister of Mines and Energy for endorsement and
promulgation. The policy is expected to be tabled by the Minister in Cabinet during the next reporting period.

2.4.2

Development of Net Metering Rules

In 2013 the ECB developed draft net metering rules to allow small solar photovoltaic (solar PV) and micro-wind generators to be connected to
the local distribution grids (less than 500kW).
Due to the likely financial impact of the rules on the distribution utilities the regulator embarked on an analysis to assess the impact that the
rules might have on distribution utilities. The project commenced early 2014 and is expected to be finalised by August 2014. It is expected
that once the financial impact assessment is conducted and the rules are adjusted accordingly that they will be approved by the ECB Board.
Subsequently the rules will be submitted to the Minister of Mines and Energy for endorsement and promulgation. It is expected that the final
rules will be published early 2015.

2.4.3

Renewable Energy Feed-In Tariffs (REFIT)

With the financial assistance from USAID a consultant was appointed to develop and draft REFIT levels and associated rules for renewable energy
technologies from 500kW to 5MW capacity.
Two stakeholder workshops and a number of consultations were held during the period under review. Draft rules and REFIT levels are developed
and still being discussed with stakeholders.
It is envisaged that more discussions will be held before the draft rules are approved by the ECB and presented to the Minister of Mines and
Energy. It is expected that the rules will be published during the second quarter of 2015.

2.4.4

Study on a National Electricity Support Mechanism

During the period under review the ECB assisted by its consultants, devised a mechanism to make electricity more affordable for low-income
consumers. The project identified and assessed regional and international options used to shield low income households against rising electricity
prices.
The analysis included a review of the relevant legal, regulatory, technical, financial and economic constraints and implications of introducing
electricity support tariffs, and development of scenarios on how such mechanisms can be funded. The study also quantified the impact that the
introduction of an electricity support mechanism has on the country’s economy, the electricity sector as a whole, and low income end-users.
The project is expected to be approved by the Board in May 2014; thereafter it will be presented to the Minister of Mines and Energy for
endorsement by Government before implementation can proceed.
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2.4.5

Development of a support mechanism for improving electrification for 		
peri-urban and rural areas

Access to reliable electricity is important for household and business for different usage and benefits. The benefits brought about by access to
affordable and reliable electricity are often underestimated. However, such benefits become particularly obvious in areas with no or limited
access to electricity. In Namibia there are rural and peri-urban areas that are still significantly un-electrified.
While the established residential areas of towns and villages are largely fully electrified, there is a significant number of un-electrified households
and businesses in peri-urban / informal areas where mostly low-income urban households are found.
During the period under review the ECB appointed a consultant to assist in developing and designing a support mechanism for improving
electrification for peri-urban and rural areas. The project involves identification of different options and development of the support mechanism.
The project is expected to be completed during the first half of 2015.

2.4.6

Develop and design a tariff model for Kudu and IPPs

In 2012, Cabinet took a decision that Kudu Power Plant be developed as a national project that will receive the necessary support from
Government. A number of events have since taken place such as the establishment of the Kudu Steering Committee, comprising of the Ministry
of Mines and Energy, ECB, NamPower, Namcor, Itochu and Tullow Oil. To date a Project Development Agreement (PDA) has been signed by the
project teams.
The ECB is developing a tariff model specifically to assess the tariff for Kudu power. The project entails documenting the tariff review process,
assessment of different funding options and an assessment of impact on the national bulk electricity tariffs.
The project is expected to continue until Kudu power is licensed and a final investment decision is taken by the involved parties.     

33

“These standards are needed for evaluating quality of service when granting
distribution licences, monitoring the
performance of licensees on an ongoing
basis and when dealing with customer
complaints.”

3

Technical Regulation

3.1

Quality of Supply Profile for the Namibian ESI

The quality of supply project is at a phase where the Local Authorities and REDs are managing their own quality of supply data collection systems
with the help of a consultant. During the period under review, the utilities supplied power quality assessment reports to the ECB. The reports
covered a number of power quality parameters, including voltage dips/swells, Interruptions (reliability of supply), voltage magnitude and
voltage unbalance. Voltage dips and interruptions recorded during the period under review are as outlined below:

3.1.1

Voltage dip events for Utilities – NamPower and NORED

The voltage dip events for NamPower transmission and distribution and NORED’s distribution networks respectively, were based on measurements
taken at various supply points. The following voltage dip events were recorded during the year 2013:
The total number of dips per day for NORED were recorded as given in Figure 9 below:

Figure 9: NORED Voltage Dips per Day (2013)
The total numbers of dips per day for NamPower were recorded as given in Figure 10 below:  

Figure 10: NamPower Transmission Network Voltage Dips per Day (2013)
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General voltage dip description and definition
A voltage dip is a sudden reduction in the root mean square (rms) value of voltage supply as defined in the NRS - 048 standards. Below is a
table showing the various dip types.
1

2

3

Dip

Values of duration and depth

Basis for definition

Category
Y

Duration

>20ms to 3s

Dip Definition (20ms to 3s)

Depth

30%, 20%, 15%

Minimum plant compatibility requirement (this covers a significant number of short
duration dips)

X1

Duration

20ms to 150ms

Typical Zone 1 clearance (no pilot wire)

Depth

30% to 40%

Desired plant immunity - as this spans many dips caused by remote faults on the

Duration

>20ms to 150ms

Typical Zone 1 clearance (no pilot wire)

Depth

40% to 60%

Dips potentially causing drives to trip, caused by remote faults on the licensee network

Duration

>150ms to 600ms Typical zone 2 and accelerated clearance. Also some distribution faults

Depth

20% to 60%

Plant compatibility (drives trip >20%) caused by remote faults on the licensee network

Duration

>20ms to 600ms

Zone 1 and Zone 2 clearance times

Depth

60% to 100%

Plant compatibility (contactors trip >60%) caused by close-up faults on the licensee

licensee network
X2
S
T

network
Z1

Duration

>600ms to 3s

Back-up and thermal protection clearance or long recovery times (transient voltage
stability) or both

Z2

Depth

15% to 30%

Remote faults. Post-dip motor recovery without stalling

Duration

>600ms to 3s

Back-up and thermal protection clearance

Depth

30% to 100%

Closer faults. Potential motor stalling

Table 7: Various Dip Types

3.1.2

Power Interruption events for Utilities

The documented power interruption events for NamPower, CENORED, NORED and OPE recorded for the 12 calendar months of 2013 are shown
in Table 8 below.

MONTH

Interruptions
OPE

NAMPOWER

CENORED

NORED

Jan

1

56

5

21

Feb

4

132

7

18

Mar

1

76

2

14

Apr

1

2

1

6

May

0

203

1

7

Jun

1

8

1

3

Jul

0

0

3

3

Aug

3

0

0

4

Sep

1

8

0

8

Oct

2

21

0

24

Nov

0

32

0

23

TOTAL

14

538

20

131

Table 8: Interruptions Recorded for 2013
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The number of recorded interruptions is more a function of the level of network penetration (number of functional installed measuring devices)
than a performance indicator. An objective performance comparison would take into account a number of factors, such as the number of
measuring devices per utility, location, voltage levels and seasonal weather variations.

3.2

Overview of Quality of Service Standards

The quality of service standard outlines various service activities and the minimum standards for measuring the quality-of-service provided
to customers by electricity distribution licensees in Namibia. These standards are needed for evaluating quality of service when granting
distribution licences, monitoring the performance of licensees on an ongoing basis and when dealing with customer complaints.
Licensees provide a range of services related to electricity supply such as quotations, complaint handling, installations, billing, and others. These
may not always be at acceptable levels and therefore need to be measured in accordance with the quality of supply and service standards.
The standards for various service activities are summarised in the table below:

Service activity

Measure of service
standard

Overall standard (recommended
practice) Response

Guaranteed Standard Resolved

Customer complaints

Time to respond &
resolve

80% one stop without referral.

4 weeks.

20% & written – respond in 1 week.

4 weeks.

Quality of supply related NRS048.

Quality of supply - NRS048.

80% one stop without referral.

1 day

20% & written – respond in 1 week.

4 weeks.

Payment queries 100% one stop.

Changes effected within 31 days.

Meter reading queries 5 days.

Changes effected within 31 days.

Account queries 5 working days.

Changes effected within 31 days.

Customer enquiries

Time to respond &
resolve

Customer requests
moving / changing:
meters, street lights or
tariffs.

Time to respond &
resolve

1 week to reply stating requirements.

4 weeks to provide detailed quotation
and conditions.

Customer reporting

Time to respond &
resolve

All fault reports not resolved
telephonically are referred to the
dispatcher within 1 hour.

Apply continuity of supply standards.

All emergency reports acted on
immediately.

2 hour urban
6 hours rural.

Handling of claims.

Time to respond &
resolve

Written reply within 1 week.

Penalty payments within 31 days.

Notice of planned
interruptions

Time in advance to
give notice.

To be given to the affected customers
at least 48 h in advance

NA

Table 9: Standards for Various Activities

3.3

Technical Regulation Projects and Activities

3.3.1

Technical Audits of the ESI

Technical auditing refers to a process of identifying potential performance risks and how to effectively manage these risks using available
regulatory tools. Amongst other regulatory measures and approaches, regulation in the sector is achieved through the establishment and
enforcement of technical and performance standards encompassing quality, reliability of supply, safety and others.
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The electricity audit manual and inspection guidelines have been developed and submitted to the ECB Board for approval. In preparation for
implementation, the Technical Regulation Department (TRD) undertook familiarisation visits to various NamPower facilities. Among the facilities
visited were the Ruacana hydro power station; van Eck coal power station, Paratus and Anixas thermal power stations; National Control Centre;
Energy Trading Division; Transmission Business Unit Power Quality Department and Auas substation. The TRD plans to conduct the Technical
Audits for the entire Namibian ESI, covering all major licensees such as NamPower, REDs and Municipalities.

3.3.2

Assessment of Power Supply Status to Essential Service
Facilities in Namibia

A project was initiated and commissioned by the ECB to assess the status of availability and reliability of power supply to Namibian Hospitals
and other critical service facilities.
This was partially necessitated by the tragic loss of lives reported in the media and alleged to be a result of unavailability of life support systems
to designated patients as a result of power supply failure.
Major critical facilities such as public and private hospitals, airports and water pumping stations in all the 14 regions were inspected. Drafting of
the final reports with key recommendations on the outcomes of these inspections is underway.

3.3.3

The Wiremen’s Licensing Project

Currently, there is no harmonised system for evaluation, certification and issuing of wiremen’s licenses in Namibia. Different evaluation criteria
are being used by different Licensees for the approval of electrical contractors to work on electrical installations. To address this issue, the
Electricity Supply Industry (ESI) established a Stakeholder Working Committee (SWC) consisting of stakeholders such as the ECB, NQA, NTA,
NamPower, City of Windhoek (CoW), REDs and Contractors’ Association to address these issues.
Some of the key milestones of this project to date are:
•

establishment of a Stakeholder Working Group;

•

development and Implementation of a Stakeholder Engagement Plan;

•

budget secured for SWC to execute mandate; and

•

external review of Wiremen’s Licensing Project key roadmap documents on the technical, regulatory and legislative framework.

3.3.4

Demand Side Management (DSM) Activities

The potential DSM programs for possible implementation in the Namibian ESI were identified during the development of the National Integrated
Resource Plan and outlined as follows:
•

CFL/LED roll out programme;

•

residential SWH dissemination;

•

commercial & industrial SWH dissemination;

•

subsidized energy audits;

•

commercial & industrial energy efficient lighting;

•

ripple control of electric water heaters (geysers);

•

commercial & industrial air conditioning efficiency;

•

information dissemination and public awareness program; and

•

energy audits for large industry.

The successful implementation of the above-mentioned activities is expected to reduce Namibia’s forecast demand considerably.

3.3.5

Promotion of Renewable Energy Activities

Namibia is endowed with abundant renewable energy resources such as wind and solar. With the current electricity deficit in the SADC region,
the need to integrate these energy resources into the country’s energy mix is critical. This is also in line with the Energy Policy goals of 1998 and
the National Integrated Resource Plan (NIRP) of 2013.
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During the review period, the ECB gave support to numerous potential investors seeking licenses or opportunities to invest in renewable energy
generation projects. The ECB is currently a member of the National Project Steering Committee tasked with implementation of renewable
energy projects in Namibia.
The ECB was instrumental in supporting the transformation of the REEEI into the National Energy Institute.

3.3.6

Renewable Energy Procurement

A study to develop a framework and tariff methodology for renewable energy technologies was commissioned by the ECB to facilitate greater
exploitation of the country’s renewable energy resources. The Renewable Energy Technologies (RETs) considered were solar (CSP & PV); wind;
biomass including landfill gas and small hydro.
The study recommended the following mechanisms:
•

tendering for solar (CSP) and large wind based generation systems, i.e. for CSP & wind > 5MW in installed capacity;

•

REFIT for small wind, small hydro & biomass including landfill gas, i.e. <5MW

•

net-metering for photovoltaics below 500kW;

•

other support measures like soft loans, grants, tax breaks, etc. to support all the above instruments and to continue promoting rural and
off-grid electrification;

•

MME was advised to proclaim regulations to govern the RET procurement (as empowered by Section 43 of the Electricity Act of 2007);

•

ECB is mandated to administer the regulations which must be simple, comprehensible and transparent; and

•

the National Energy Fund is to be transformed through regulations to cover RETs as well.

The procurement of 30 MW of Solar PV by way of competitive bidding is currently underway and administered by the national Project Steering
Committee.

3.3.7

Harmonisation of Transmission and Distribution Voltages
(Contestable Customers) Project

This project seeks to address the fundamental issue of the interface between transmission and distribution, and addresses the question
whether NamPower should continue to supply power directly to the “transmission end consumers” in a RED area. Erongo RED, with significant
transmission end consumers in its area, contends that they are losing out on revenue from these customers. They also contend that they have
a license area, which is not respected when it comes to these customers.
Thus the ECB commissioned a project to assess the status quo and make recommendations on the optimal way forward.
The final report was submitted in December 2013 and presented to the ECB Board for approval. Preparations for presentations to MME are
underway. This will be subsequently followed by stakeholder engagements for implementation.

3.4

Enhancing Electricity Supply with NIRP

3.4.1

Background

Desirous to effectively address Namibia’s security of supply against the backdrop of insufficient generation capacity within the SADC region, the
Ministry of Mines and Energy (MME) developed a National Integrated Resource Plan (NIRP).
This was done at a cost of one million US dollars financed through 70% grant funding from the World Bank and 30% funding by the Government
of the Republic of Namibia (GRN) through MME.
The NIRP development project commenced on 1 July 2011 and was completed on 30 April 2013, with the submission of the final  report which
is expected to become public soon after endorsement and approval by the Minister of Mines and Energy.
The NIRP is a 20 year electricity sector development plan. It is not a short or medium-term operational plan but a plan that directs the expansion
of the electricity supply over the given period. The principal goal of the NIRP is to identify the supply mix of resources to meet the near and
long-term electric power needs in Namibia in a sustainable, efficient, safe and reliable manner at the lowest reasonable cost.
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3.4.2

Key outcomes of the NIRP

The NIRP outlines the electrical energy requirements needed for Namibia to achieve the aspiration of sustainable economic growth and by
when the capacity is needed.
It addresses the appropriate mix of technologies to meet these electrical energy needs that ensure Namibia can meet its commitments to
climate change initiatives, adequacy of electricity supply, maintaining a competitive position in the global arena and ensuring sustainable use
of local and regional resources. The NIRP also describes the role of Government, ECB, Utilities, IPPs and other key ESI stakeholders in meeting
the country’s electrical energy needs whilst building a sustainable industry.
The Implementation Schedule of planned generation projects is shown in Table 10 and Table 11:
Year
Project

Milestone

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Quarter
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Hydro & Renewable Energy Additions
Upgrade Ruacana, +11MW
Solar PV1, 10MW
Solar PV2, 10MW
Solar PV3, 30MW
Wind, 44MW
Expiration of Imports
Contract with ZESA, 150MW
Contract with ZESCO, 50MW
SPSA with ESKOM, 200MW
Thermal Units
Retire Paratus, 17MW
Refurbish Van Eck, +31MW
Retire Van Eck, 81MW (2025)

Table 10: Planned Implementation of Generation Projects
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Year
Project

2013

Milestone Event

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Quarter
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Temporay Import or Rental
Addition of 10MW
Addition of 70MW
Addition of 260MW
Removal of 340MW
Kudu Gas Power Plant (400/800MW)
All Approvals
Financial Closure
Tendering Process
Construction
Testing
Commercial Operation
First Import Contract (100MW)
Project Identification
Negotiation
Contract Signed
Transmission Connection
On-line
Second Import Contract (100MW)
Project Identification
Negotiation
Contract Signed
Transmission Connection
On-line

Table 11: Planned Implementation of Generation Projects Continued

3.5

Technical Regulatory Tools

3.5.1

Technical Rules

Technical Rules are designed to ensure efficient operation with regards to technical matters in the electricity industry. These rules were approved
by the ECB Board, presented to MME and are currently undergoing promulgation. The scope, terms and conditions of these technical rules are
in line with the current Namibian Distribution Grid Code.

3.5.2

The Grid Code

The Grid Code is a set of documents that legally establishes technical and other requirements for the connection and use of an electrical system
other than the owning electric utility in a manner that will ensure reliable, efficient and safe operation.
There are two grid codes currently in existence: the Transmission and the Distribution Grid codes. The transmission grid code is currently being
implemented in the industry due to the need to have clearly defined guidelines on transmission. Over time, amendments to the original drafts
have been made as deemed necessary. The Distribution Grid Code has been revised and was presented to ESI Stakeholders at a workshop in
December 2013 and the documents were submitted to legal drafters for the due diligence process.

3.5.3

Safety Code

The Namibian Electricity Safety Code (NESC) is an extension of the Electricity Act 2007, and the Labour Act, 2007, with particular emphasis on
Health and Safety Regulations. It governs the minimum safety standards for the operation, maintenance, construction and installation of power
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systems in Namibia. The purpose of this code is to ensure the safety of all persons, to safeguard apparatus and to provide continuity of supply.
It was gazetted in October 2011. The ECB plans to facilitate the implementation process of the NESC through various stakeholder engagement
activities.

3.5.4

Best Practice Maintenance Guidelines

The Namibian Electricity Distribution Industry (EDI) has seen significant infrastructure expansion over the past several years. Thus the need for
optimised guidelines on maintenance practices was identified. A lack of sound maintenance practices leads to poorly maintained infrastructure,
decreased asset lives, power system technical losses, inefficiency and reduced productivity amongst others.
It is in this light that the ECB embarked on a consultative process to develop this document, Guidelines to Maintenance Practices for Distribution
Networks in the Distribution Sector of the Namibian ESI.  This document has been finalised and was approved by the ECB Board in December
2012. It is ready for implementation as it does not require promulgation.

3.5.5

Distribution Infrastructure Standards

As mentioned earlier, the Namibian EDI has been undergoing changes and seen significant infrastructure expansion. Different licensees
have been using different distribution infrastructure standards. Thus, the need to harmonise these standards was identified. It is against
this background that the ECB embarked on a consultative process for determining appropriate standards governing the construction and
maintenance of electricity distribution infrastructure for voltages up to and including 33kV.These standards were finalised and approved by
the ECB Board in December 2012. The ECB is about to commence the implementation phase by extensively engaging stakeholders through
awareness campaigns.

3.5.6

Measurement & Verification (M&V) Guidelines for Demand Side
Management & Energy Efficiency (DSMEE) Initiatives.

Measurement and verification (M&V) is the independent analysis and reporting of Demand Side Management and Energy Efficiency (DSMEE)
saving impacts. It is designed to quantify and assess the impacts that result from DSMEE projects in an impartial manner. Independent assessment
and reporting processes are required to ensure its credibility
After the implementation of some DSM initiatives over recent years, the ECB identified the need to enhance the credibility of historical, current
and future initiatives on energy efficiency and demand side management through development and implementation of Measurement and
Verification (M&V) guidelines (protocols) complemented by targeted capacity building training to ensure sustainability.
Thus, the ECB commissioned a project to develop and implement the Measurement and Verification (M&V) Guidelines (Protocols) and conduct
targeted capacity building training. The project is due to commence with an inception meeting in June 2014 and is expected to be completed
by June 2015.
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“The main tasks of the ECB include issuing licenses and monitoring licensee
performance to ensure compliance with
license conditions and requirements.”

4. Regulatory Support Services
4.1

Licensing

The main tasks of the ECB include issuing licenses and monitoring licensee performance to ensure compliance with license conditions and
requirements. A typical applicant for a license can be a corporate entity such as a municipality, electricity generation or a distribution company,
a power utility, an individual, or any legal entity intending to fully or partially undertake an electricity business within the borders of Namibia.

Figure 11: Licensing Procedure
The licensing activities undertaken during the review period are summarized in this section.

4.1.1
a)

New licenses granted

B2Gold (Pty) Ltd was granted a 24MW generation license for the Otjikoto Gold Mine using diesel generators. The license was granted on
1 February 2014 and is valid for a 20 year period. The power station will run off grid and will be utilized by the mine for own consumption.

b)

Paramount Infrastructure Development was granted a 22MW generation license for the Welwitschia Solar One Power Station near
Khorixas using CSP technology. The license was granted on 1 September 2013 and is valid for a 25 year period.

c)

Erongo Diagram Investment was granted a 5MW generation license for a Solar PV power plant at Arandis. The license was granted on 1
July 2013 and is valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to a private off-taker.
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d)

OKA Investment (Pty) Ltd was granted a 20MW generation license for a Solar PV power plant at Ondangwa. The license was granted on
1 July 2013 and is valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to a private off-taker.

e)

Africa Energy Corporation (Pty) Ltd was granted a 5MW generation license for a Solar PV power plant at Walvis Bay. The license was
granted on 1 July 2013 and is valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to a private off-taker.

f)

Innosun (Pty) Ltd was granted a two generation licenses of 4.5 MW each for a Solar PV power plant at Omburu and Osona. The licenses
were granted on 1 November 2013 and are valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to NamPower.

g)

Africa Renewable Energy Solutions (Pty) Ltd was granted a 0.680MW generation license for a Solar PV power plant at Okakarara The
license was granted on 1 April 2014 and is valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to a private off-taker.

h)

Xaris Energy (Pty) Ltd was granted a 200MW generation license for a gas-fired power plant to be built in Walvis Bay. The license was
granted on 1 March 2014 for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to NamPower.

i)

Sertum Energy (Pty) Ltd was granted a 27MW generation license for a Solar PV power plant at Trekkopje in the Erongo Region. The license
was granted on 1 April 2014 and is valid for a 25 year period. The licensee intends to provide power to a private off-taker.

4.1.2 Licenses amended
The special conditional generation licenses of the following licensees were amended:
a)

Arandis Power (Pty) Ltd: license was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 31 October 2014;

b)

Ark Industries Namibia (Pty) Ltd: license was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 31 December 2014;

c)

Diaz Wind Power (Pty) Ltd: license was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 30 November 2014;

d)

GreeNam Electricity (Pty) Ltd: license for Keetmanshoop site was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 31
August 2014;

e)

GreeNam Electricity (Pty) Ltd: license for Mariental site was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 31 May
2014;

f)

Bush Energy Namibia (Pty) Ltd (C-BEND): license was amended to extend the period of validity of special conditions to 30 April 2014.

The above extensions were necessitated, amongst other reasons, by the need for the licensees to finalize their Power Purchase Agreement
negotiations with NamPower.

4.1.3

License exemptions

Oshakati Premier Electric (Pty) Ltd was granted permission to operate under the licenses of NORED by the Minister of Mines and Energy. The
validity period for the permission is five years commencing 1 February 2014 and ending 1 March 2019.
Maroelaboom Power Supply in the Otjozondjupa Region of Namibia that is distributing and supplying electricity mainly to the farming community
applied for exemption to do the distribution and supply business under the licenses of CENORED. Their application is currently under review.

4.1.4

License renewals granted

In the period under review, following licenses were renewed:
a)

43 distribution licenses

b)

43 supply licenses

The distribution and supply licenses in areas initially earmarked for the Southern RED and Central RED were renewed to local authorities for
another year, as both REDs have not been established.

4.1.5
a)

License applications under review

Aloe Investment (Pty) Ltd applied for a 4.9MW solar PV generation license for a power plant that is to be erected at Rosh Pinah. The
application is under review.

b)

Orange Hydro Fall (Pty) Ltd applied for a 20MW generation license for a hydro power plant that is to be erected at a site near the Orange
River. The application is under review.

c)

Camelthorn Business Venture NO 2 (Pty) Ltd applied for a 4.9MW solar PV generation license for a power plant that is to be erected at
Outapi in the Omusati Region. The application is under review.

d)

Sunchem Alpha Investment (Pty) Ltd applied for a 5MW generation license for a biomass power plant that is to be erected at a farm
near Otjiiwarongo. The application is under review.
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e)

Phatsimo Solar Power (Pty) Ltd applied for a 10MW solar PV generation license for a power plant that is to be erected at Otjiwarongo.
The application is under review.

f)

InnoSun (Pty) Ltd applied for the following solar PV generation licenses Omburu 2 (20MW), Mariental (7.5MW), Seeis (2.5MW) and
Omaruru (2.5MW). The applications are under review.

4.1.6

Independent Power Producers

The ECB continued to receive six monthly reports during the period under review in line with the instruction given by the ECB Board in 2009/10
period.  This measure improved the monitoring process by increasing the frequency of obligatory contact with the ECB through feedback reports.
Even for cases where applicants failed to comply with stipulated conditions, reports enabled ECB to assess the level of practical commitment
demonstrated by the applicants through the efforts made to overcome the barriers. It also shed some light on other non-commercial but equally
important factors hindering private sector participation.

Licensee

Type

Size
(MW)

Date Issued

Validity
period
(yrs)
22

Off taker

Diaz Wind Power (Pty) Ltd

Wind

44

1-Apr-07

Arandis Power (Pty) Ltd

HFO

120

1 Nov 2012

InnoSun (Pty) Ltd (Omburu)

Solar PV

4.5

1 Nov 2013

25

NamPower

GreeNam Electricity  (Keetmanshoop)

Solar PV

10

1 June 11

25

NamPower

GreeNam Electricity (Mariental)

Solar PV

10

1 June 11

25

NamPower

GreeNam Electricity (Rehoboth)

Solar PV

10

1 June 11

25

NamPower

InnoSun (Pty) Ltd (Osona)

Solar PV

4.5

1 Nov 2013

25

NamPower

Atlantic Coast Energy Company (Pty)

1-Nov-07

25

NamPower

Vizion Energy Resources (Pty) Ltd

Coal
700
(pulverized)
Coal (CFB)
300

4-Apr-08

25

NamPower

Erongo Diagram Investment

Solar PV

5

1 July 2013

25

Private

OKA Investment (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

20

1 July 2013

25

Private

Africa Energy Corporation (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

4.9

1 July 2013

25

Private

Paramount Infrastructure Development (Pty) Ltd

CSP

22

1 Sept 2013

25

NamPower

Xaris Energy (Pty) Ltd

Gas

200

1 April 2014

25

NamPower

Sertum Energy (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

27

1 April 2014

25

Private

CBEND (Bush Energy Namibia)

Biomass

0.250

1-May-10

5

NamPower

Africa Renewable Energy Solution (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

0.680

1 April 2014

25

Private

Ark Industries Namibia (Pty) Ltd

Solar

16

1 Jan 2013

25

NamPower

NamEnergy Solar (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

5

1 May 2012

25

NamPower

Namibia Solar World (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

5

1 May 2012

25

NamPower

Momentous Solar One (Pty) Ltd

Solar

5

1 May 2012

25

NamPower

Uprise Energy (Pty) Ltd

Solar PV

5

1 May 2012

25

NamPower

Comment

NamPower
NamPower

Commercial
operation to
start

Progress
report due

Endorsement
of licence
amendment
awaited

Table 12: IPP Generation Licenses Previously Issued
It can be notably reported that InnoSun (Pty) Ltd (Omburu) became the first IPP to meet all its suspensive conditions as per their license
conditions, that include the submission of the signed Power Purchase Agreement (PPA), Transmission Connection Agreement, Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA) as well as proof of finance. The IPP has made substantive progress to get the project off the ground and will reach
financial close for the project any time soon while construction on the power plant will begin towards the second half of 2014.
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4.2

Licensing Compliance

As part of the compliance monitoring undertaken by the ECB, several audits and inspections were conducted across the country.
As per the audit report, license compliance remains a challenge especially with smaller licensees. The ECB is in the process of developing
different remedies to address these challenges.

4.3

ESI Capacity Building

As part of the ECB’s contribution towards an effective and efficient ESI, the ECB continuously built capacity within the ESI as the industry evolves
and where challenges are identified.
During the period under review the ECB provided capacity building through training sessions to improve customer service delivery as well as
training on tariff determination for licensees especially at distribution level.

4.4

ECB Strategic Plan Projects

The table below lists the Strategic Plan projects undertaken during the reporting period, and their respective degree of completion:
Project Name

Completed

Implementation

Develop Regulatory Framework for Renewable Energy

50%

Conduct study on penalties & enforcement mechanisms

15%

Farmer Schemes: Investigate the Farmer Schemes and recommend solutions

15%

Draft & Implementation legislation for transformed Regulator

100%

Employee Perception Survey

100%

Implementation to commence in

Improve Finance & Admin Policies & Procedures

100%

new financial year

Design & Implement New Org. Structure

100%

MIS management

100%

Review & update economic regulations

100%

Establish knowledge hub/library

100%

Study for feasibility of electricity support tariff

95%

Develop financial model to assess viability of licensees

60%

Investigate the implementation of Net Metering

90%

Develop a national connection charge policy

95%

Support development of National Integrated Resource Plan

95%

Project to be finalised during the

Study of contestable customer Streamline Tx & Dx voltage

70%

next financial year

Develop a PM Office with standard methodologies including Training

50%



Streamline licensing processes & procedures

100%

REDs Establishment

20%

Development of a renewable energy map for Namibia

90%

Peri-urban Support Mechanisms

15%

QoS database analysis

30%

System operations for QoS standards for all REDs & CoW

85%

Activities promoting Renewable Energy Awareness

100%

Develop an ESI Performance Management Framework

80%

Table 13: ECB Strategic Plan Projects
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Project in implementation phase

“Challenges that continue to be prevalent in the electricity industry stem from
the need to replace and upgrade ageing
infrastructure, the need to meet electricity demand growth, and the requirements
levied by the regulator continue to be a
challenge to the players in the electricity
supply business.”

5. Industry Analysis
5.1

Electricity Sector Performance results.

The electricity supply industry utilities have endured a continuous challenge, in their attempts to maintain efficiency and effectiveness of the
industry. Challenges that continue to be prevalent in the electricity industry stem from the need to replace and upgrade ageing infrastructure,
the need to meet electricity demand growth, and the requirements levied by the regulator continue to be a challenge to the players in the
electricity supply business. Financial capacity problems of certain utilities can be divided into the lack of operating funds and the lack of access
to capital funds. With regard to the lack of operating funds, smaller utilities representing local authorities and village councils face a challenge to
supply electricity to their communities and to maintain assets and the inability of some utilities to pay their debts is of concern. Larger utilities
on the other hand are facing challenges, due to a lack of sufficient access to capital funds for necessary generation capacity improvements, and
network strengthening.
Capital funds are, in theory, available to utilities from ratepayers, retained earnings, subsidized loans such as the National Energy fund levy (NEF)
and capital markets.
Performance levels for smaller utilities have reduced to the extent that they do not have the ability to generate the data necessary to sustain
a loan request and lack sound economic fundamentals and an operating margin, resulting in a situation where they have been closed out of
some or all of these sources of funds.
The analysis of efficiency and effectiveness considers the technical performance of the Namibian electricity sector and the extent to which
activities are carried out at least cost.
Through the Performance Management System, the Regulator has been able to monitor the performance of licensees in accordance with set
industry benchmarks. There were noticeable trends in the performance of licensees in areas such as efficiency, security of supply, sustainability
and investment and growth. Notable improvements were made by licensees in densely populated areas. However, licensees in other areas are
experiencing challenges with regards to investment and growth. Ideally the regulator should not be involved in the operational aspects of the
utility but rather develop and set in place specific targets that are to be achieved, and attach financial implications to meeting or not meeting
such targets. Such an approach necessitates that appropriate performance criteria be defined, which have to be both realistic and achievable
within a given timeframe.
An important objective of performance monitoring is for the ECB to collect sufficient data on the performance of the industry, as published in
the ECB Statistical Bulletin.
The information collected is also used by the Regulator to jointly set performance targets with the licensees.
The performance management process as applied to the ESI is based on normal proven performance management principles and processes.
These typically involve the setting of performance targets (in close consultation with the entity being measured, and agreed mutually between
the performance manager and the entity being measured) relating to a specific period or number of periods.
The actual performance is then measured in relation to the targets. Ideally the entity being measured should easily be able to assess and predict
their own performance, and therefore performance reviews with the performance manager should not contain surprises for the entity being
measured.
A good common understanding of the factors which influence performance on each indicator is also essential in the interpretation of the results
returned for any period, as this will guide towards assessing whether results are acceptable or improvements in performance are required.

5.1.1

Electricity Distribution by Regional Electricity Distributors

Of the 3 operational RED companies Northern Regional Electricity Distribution Company (Pty) Ltd (NORED) recorded the most improved
performance amongst the commercial performance indicators, whereas Erongo Regional Electricity Distribution Company (Pty) Ltd (ERONGO
RED) maintained its performance well in relation to the performance targets.
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2012/2013

3 Yr Average

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

3 Yr Average

2010/2011

2011/2012

2011/2013

3 Yr Average

1%- 7%

5.6%

5.9%

3.5%

5.0%

2.0%

1.1%

2.6%

1.9%

22.71%

7.53%

11.29%

13.8%

17%

14%

18%

8%

13.4%

4%

2%

5%

3.7%

21%

16%

9%

15.5%

Current Ratio

>1

2.46

2.37

1.39

2.07

0.77

1.14

1.56

1.15

1.59

2.37

2.01

1.99

Quick Ratio

>1

2.41

2.27

1.29

1.99

0.63

0.94

1.35

0.97

1.42

2.27

1.85

1.85

11- 3%

14%

14%

8%

12%

15%

15%

15%

15%

5%

8%

8%

7.0%

Key
Performance
Indicators

2011/2012

ERONGO RED

2010/2011

CENORED

Benchmark

NORED

Financial Indicators
ROA
Operating
Margin

Technical Indicators
Network Losses

Commercial Indicators
Debtor days

32– 70days

59

63

65

62.16

51

42

47

46.64

90

55

74

73.11

Operating Cost
/Sales

25-40%

18%

26%

35%

26%

25

36%

26%

29.0%

16%

42%

28%

29.1%

Bad Debts (%)

0.3-1.3%

1.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.5%

0.3%

0.2%

0.3%

0.3%

0.4%

0.0%

0.2%

137-555

347

364

371

360.82

111

114

155

126.42

123

286

323

244.02

2400-9600

1701

1620

1721

11681.02

855

891

964

903.26

1466

1371

1600

1479.34

Efficiency Indicators
Customers/
Employee
Energy Sold /
Employee kWh

Table 14: Performance of REDs
The electricity distribution industry has continued as a viable industry as recorded for the 2012/2013 financial period.
Progressive improvements in the performance of Central-North Electricity Distribution Company (Pty) ltd (CENORED) are noted, with year on year
profit increasing from N$ 3.9 million to N$ 14.7 million. Although network losses remained at 15%, the regulator does not foresee this situation
to improve without significant capital investments in the network assets.
The electrification drive embarked upon by CENORED has produced clear results, as noted in improved efficiency indicators.

5.1.2

Electricity Distribution by Entities outside RED Areas

The performance summary for select electricity distribution licensees outside the RED areas is shown in Table 15.

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

3 Yr Average

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

3 Yr Average

Oshakati Premier Electric (Pty) Ltd

Benchmark

Key
Performance
Indicators

Southern Electricity Company (Pty) Ltd

1%- 7%

8.0%

-4.1%

10.2%

4.7%

4.81%

7.84%

10.77%

7.8%

Financial Indicators
ROA
Operating
Margin

17%

4%

-2%

4%

2.2%

5%

8%

10%

Current Ratio

>1

2.94

2.72

1.84

2.50

1.36

1.73

2.00

7.6%
1.69

Quick Ratio

>1

2.41

2.09

1.65

2.05

1.29

1.63

1.90

1.61

11- 3%

22%

10%

11%

14%

8%

9%

10%

9.0%

32– 70days

55

54

57

55

45

31

36

37

Technical Indicators
Network Losses
Commercial Indicators
Debtor days
Operating Cost
/Sales

25-40%

38%

40%

35%

38%

32

31%

26%

30.0%

Bad Debts (%)

0.3-1.3%

1.1%

1.2%

0.1%

1%

0.2%

0.2%

0.1%

0.2%

137-555

232

260

241

244

112

111

117

113

2400-9600

1670.59

1955.79

1821.85

1,816

1304.44

1333.31

1274.47

1.304

Efficiency Indicators
Customers/
Employee
Energy Sold /Employee kWh

Table 15: Performance of Non-RED Distributors
Southern Electricity Company (Pty) Ltd (SELCO) is involved in providing electricity to Karasburg Municipality, Aranos Municipality as well as
Keetmanshoop Municipality, areas outside of existing RED structures. The contracts between SELCO and the respective municipalities are due to
come to an end in 2015.
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SELCO’s performance has stabilised from previous years loss positions, however still remaining viable as noted over the three year assessment
of results. Although operational costs have reduced, the performance remains within the required performance levels.
Oshakati Premier Electric (Proprietary Limited) (OPE) has recorded significant improvements and is on a notable upward trend, evident by the
stable results in all performance areas under review.

5.2

Key ESI Statistics

This part of the report contains a brief overview of the key statistics. More detailed analyses are available in the ESI statistical bulletin 2013. The
information presented here is based on three types of customer category namely Domestic, Commercial and Large power users. The data used
for this report is collected by the ECB through tariff application requirements as well as utility annual reports.

Figure 12: Local Electricity Generation Capacity vs Demand
The Namibian local generation capacity has been outstripped by the local demand (excluding Skorpion Mine) since 2006 as shown in Figure
12 above. The installed generation capacity cannot meet the local electricity demand of the country and therefore the country relies heavily
on imports from neighbouring countries. The generation capacity was increased in 2012 and decreased slightly in 2013, this was due to some
power stations that could be run only during emergencies and also some of the equipment is old  and worn out.

Figure 13: Units into the System and Units Consumed
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More than half of the units into the system are imported from Eskom and other regional markets as shown in Figure 13. This shows a higher
ratio of dependency on imports. The total units consumed continue to increase despite shortage of generation capacity and high imports, this
has a major impact on pricing with high tariffs to recover the costs of supply.

Figure 14: Retail Price Development
Figure 14 shows the average electricity price trend to distribution end consumers from 2006/7 to 2013/14, characterised by gradual price
increments over the years. Since 2009/10 to date, steep price increases were driven by persistent general electricity shortage in the region.
Before 2009/10, unit price increments were low with increments from 70 to 100 cents (43%), and afterwards from 100 to 168 cents (68%)
per unit. The average retail price of electricity has more than doubled in the last seven years in Namibia. The average retail price in Namibia is
167 Cents per unit for the 2013/2014 period.

Figure 15: Average Prices per Customer Category
The average annual prices have increased consistently over the years; this is mainly due to the high costs of electricity supply. Sharp increases
were observed since 2010/11 for commercial and LPU customers while moderate increases were seen in domestic customers with the domestic
electricity price dropping below the LPU price.
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Figure 16: Number of Customers per Category
Figure 16 shows the total number of customers per each customer category. The domestic customers are the highest in numbers, followed by
the commercial and the least number of customers are Large Power Users (LPU). There has been a gradual increase in the number of customers
over the years, the high increase has been observed in the domestic and commercial customers while the LPU has been consistent with just
below 2 200 customers in 2013/14.

Figure 17: Total Energy Consumption by Retail Customers
The total consumption of electricity has increased gradually over the years, LPU having the highest share of consumption, followed by Domestic
customers and the least consumption of electricity is the commercial customers.
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Figure 18: Revenue Contribution by Customer Category
More than half of the electricity revenue came from the LPU customer category as shown in Figure 18 in 2013/14 with 51%, followed by the
domestic customers with 30% and commercial customers with 19%.
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“The aim of regulation, amongst others,
is to promote competition, protect customers’ rights and encourage network
expansion in order to realise Government’s overall objectives as stated in the
White Paper on Energy Policy of 1998.”
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Board Members’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting
The members of the Board are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity of the
financial statements and related information. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The Board’s independent external auditors have audited the financial statements and their report appears on pages 58 to 59.
The Board members are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and
to prevent and detect material misstatement and loss. The systems are implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with
an appropriate segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the Board members to indicate that any material
breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.
The annual financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. Please refer to page 60 of the Members’ report where the appropriateness
of the going concern assumption is discussed in detail.

Board Members’ Approval of the Annual Financial Statements
The annual financial statements set out on pages 60 to 75 were approved by the Board members on 19 September 2014 and are signed on
their behalf by:

Board member

Board member
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Electricity Control Board
We have audited the annual financial statements of Electricity Control Board, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2014, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, the
report of the Members, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 60 to 75.

Members’ responsibility for the annual financial statements
The members are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and as required by the Electricity Act (No 4 of 2007), and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Electricity Control Board as at
31 March 2014, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and as required by the Electricity Act (No 4 of 2007).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Electricity Control Board (Continued)
Other matter
Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the fact that the supplementary information set out on page 76 does not form part of the
annual financial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this schedule and accordingly we do not express
an opinion on it.

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Per AA Akayombokwa
Partner
Windhoek
19 September 2014
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Report of the Board Members
for the year ended 31 March 2014
The Board members have pleasure in presenting their report on the activities of the Board for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Background And Operations
The Electricity Control Board was established by the Government of the Republic of Namibia in terms of the Electricity Act No 2 of 2000 (repealed
by Electricity Act No 4 of 2007), to exercise control over the electricity supply industry and to regulate the generation, transmission, distribution,
use, import and export of electricity in accordance with prevailing Government policy so as to ensure order in the efficient supply of electricity.

Results
The results of the Board are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements.

Dividends
No dividends have been paid or declared during the year (2013: Nil).

Board Members And Secretary
The members of the Electricity Control Board during the year and at the date of this report were as follows:
Mr. Jason Nandago

(Chairperson)

Mr. Gersom Katjimune
Ms. Panduleni Shimutwikeni			
Mr. Fritz Jeske
Mr. Gottlieb Hinda

Acting Board Secretary
Ms Jacky Scholz					
Business address:
No 8 Bismarck Street

Postal address:
P O Box 2923

Windhoek

Windhoek

NAMIBIA

NAMIBIA

Subsequent Events
The Board members are not aware of any fact or circumstance, which occurred between the date of the financial statements and the date of this
report, which might influence an assessment of the Board’s state of affairs and require disclosure in these financial statements.

Going Concern
The Board earned a surplus of N$ 12 107 931 (2013: N$ 13 203 981) and a surplus of N$ 10,727,701 is forecasted for the 2014/15 financial year.
The Board has also accumulated sufficient surplus to absorb any future losses and together with future revision to the levies, these will ensure
the operational existence of the Electricity Control Board and this confirms the appropriateness of the going concern basis in the preparation of
the annual financial statements.

60

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2014
Notes

REVENUE

4

2014

2013

N$

N$

48 254 484

38 844 413

Other income		

831 370

32 463

Operating costs		

(38 385 210)

(30 734 168)

10 700 644

8 142 708

1 407 287

924 248

12 107 931

9 066 956

SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST
Interest received		
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION

5

Taxation

7

-

-

SURLPUS FOR THE YEAR		

12 107 931

9 066 956

Other comprehensive income

8

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
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-

4 137 025

12 107 931

13 203 981

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2014
Notes

2014

2013

N$

N$

8 354 446

7 526 406

50 339 110

38 107 698

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

8

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables

9

6 404 855

4 021 741

Bank balances and cash		

43 934 255

34 085 957

TOTAL ASSETS		

58 693 556

45 634 104

45 608 095

33 500 164

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
RESERVES		
Revaluation reserve		

4 137 025

4 137 025

Accumulated funds		

41 471 070

29 363 139

CURRENT LIABILITIES

13 085 461

12 133 940
9 701 636

Trade and other payables

11

13 085 461

Finance lease

10

-

35 879

Trust funds - MME projects

12

-

2 396 425

58 693 556

45 634 104

TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
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Statement of Changes In Reserves
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Balance at 31 April 2012
Other comprehensive income for the year
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2014

Revaluation Reserve

Accumulated Funds

Total

N$

N$

N$

-

20 296 183

20 296 183

4 137 025

-

4 137 025

-

9 066 956

9 066 956

4 137 025

29 363 139

33 500 164

-

12 107 931

12 107 931

4 137 025

41 471 070

45 608 095
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2014
Note

2014

2013

N$

N$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		

13 682 540

12 029 727

Cash received from government and customers		

45 871 370

36 556 735

Cash paid to suppliers and employees		

(33 596 117)

(25 451 256)

17

12 275 253

11 105 479

Interest received		

1 407 287

924 248

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		

Cash utilised by operations

(1 401 938)

(160 208)

Proceeds on property, plant and equipment

142 781

32 463

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

(1 544 719)      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		

(2 432 304)

92 143

(Decrease)/increase in Trust Funds -MME Projects		

(2 396 425)

92 494

Finance lease payments		

(35 879)

(351)

9 848 298

11 961 662

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(192 671)      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

34 085 957

22 124 295

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR		

43 934 255

34 085 957
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014
1.

Basis Of Preparation
The annual financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments which are carried at fair value.
The principal accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in all material respects, comply in all material respects with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) adopted by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB.

1.1

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Standards that are not yet 		
effective
The Board has adopted all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the IASB) and the International Financial Reporting Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting years beginning on 1 April 2013. The following standards and interpretations are effective for the current accounting year:
IFRS 1

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 19

Employee Benefits

IAS 27

Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28

Investments in Associates

IAS 31

Interests in Joint Venture

IAS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation

IAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

IFRIC 20

Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

None of the standards, as indicated above that were effective for the current accounting year, had an impact on the results or financial
position of the Board.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were issued but not yet effective:
New/Revised International

Interpretations

Financial Reporting Standards

Effective Date

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
IFRS 9

Classification and Measurement of Financial liabilities

1 January 2015

De-recognition
IAS 36

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

1 January 2014

IAS 39

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

1 January 2014

IFRIC 21

Levies

1 January 2014

The Board members anticipate that the adoption of these statements and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial
statements in future periods.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014
2.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

Revenue
Revenue comprises levies, licence and registration fees collected in terms of the Electricity Act No 2 of 2000 (repealed by Electricity Act
No 4 of 2007) to defray costs necessarily incurred by the Control Board and are recognised on an accrual basis.

2.2

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the end of each reporting
period.
Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or
loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
Depreciation on revalued buildings is recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off assets to their estimated residual values over their anticipated useful lives
as follows:
- Buildings

25 years (4% p.a.)

- Furniture and equipment

5 years (20% p.a.)

- Computer equipment

3 years (33.3% p.a.)

- Motor vehicles

4 years (25% p.a.)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014
2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.3

Retirement benefits
Contributions to retirement funds are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

2.4

Provisions
Provisions for liabilities are recognised when the Board has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will occur, and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

2.5

Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Board reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, its carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount but limited to the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value and comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks and investments in
money market instruments, net of bank overdrafts and call loans. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included
in current liabilities. Interest-bearing bank overdrafts and other short-term borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Board considers all bank balances and cash with a maturity of less than one year
and bank overdrafts to be cash and cash equivalents.

2.7

Financial instruments
Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Board has become a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include bank and cash
balances, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
Fair values and the recognition methods of the different financial instruments are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial
statements.  Fair value represents an approximation of the year end value, which may differ from the value that will be finally realised.

De-recognition
Financial instruments are offset when the Board has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014
2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

2.8

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the rights and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases and rentals are charged against trading profit as they become due.

The Board as a lessee
Assets held under finance lease are recognised as assets of the Board at fair value at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each period.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.1

Judgements by management
There were no material judgements made by management that could have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that could
have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

3.3

Trust Funds-Ministry of Mines and Energy Project
The Board undertakes a project on behalf of the Ministry of Mines and Energy (“MME”). The funds received are accounted for as monies
held in trust and all expenditure incurred on this project are accounted for separately from the Board’s transactions.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014

4.

2014

2013

N$

N$

Revenue
Revenue comprises the following:
- Levies income

47 697 984

- Licence fees

5.

38 226 913

556 500

617 500

48 254 484

38 844 413

1 407 287

924 248

142 782

32 463

Surplus / Deficit Before Taxation
Interest received
Insurance proceeds
Government grant

-

-

(18 930)

(35 350)

46 089

(29 917)

133 458

113 611

4 793

10 880

Depreciation

619 987

482 808

- land and buildings

359 228

110 909

72 430

190 341

102 736

102 444

85 593

79 114

18 432 645

16 078 282

237 279

213 912

- service members

334 426

305 426

- other services

162 361

-

496 787

305 426

Loss on foreign exchange
Gain on disposal  of fixed assets
Expenditure:
Auditor’s remuneration:
- audit fees - current year
- prior year

- motor vehicles
- computer equipment
- furniture and equipment
Staff costs
Operating leases
- office equipment

6.

7.

Board Members Emoluments

Taxation
The Board is exempt from income tax in terms of section 16(1) (e) (i) of the Namibian Income Tax Act.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014
8.

Property, Plant and Equipment

      

Land &

Motor

Computer

Furniture &

buildings

Vehicles

equipment

equipment

Total

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

2014
Cost
At 01 April 2013

7 864 965

761 362

580 723

1 168 527

10 375 577

Disposals

-

190 712

19 533

71 539

281 784

Revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

-

1 178 360

119 616

246 743

1 544 719

7 864 965

1 749 010

680 806

1 343 731

11 638 512

847 246

649 199

419 405

933 321

2 849 171
185 092

At 31 March 2014
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2013
Disposals

-

150 980

13 803

20 309

359 228

72 430

102 736

85 593

619 987

At 31 March 2014

1 206 474

570 649

508 338

998 605

3 284 066

Net book value at 01 April 2013

7 017 719

112 163

161 318

235 206

7 526 406

Net book value at 31 March 2014

6 658 491

1 178 361

172 468

345 126

8 354 446

3 727 940

761 362

875 133

1 271 377

6 635 812

-

-

423 055

166 876

589 931

4 137 025

-

-

-

4 137 025

-

-

128 645

64 026

192 671

7 864 965

761 362

580 723

1 168 527

10 375 577

736 337

458 859

735 623

995 558

2 926 377

-

-

418 662

141 352

560 014

Depreciation

110 909

190 340

102 444

79 115

482 808

At 31 March 2013

847 246

649 199

419 405

933 321

2 849 171

Net book value at 01 April 2012

2 991 603

302 502

139 510

275 819

3 709 435

Net book value at 31 March 2013

7 017 719

112 163

161 318

235 206

7 526 406

Depreciation

2013
Cost
At 01 April 2012
Disposals
Revaluation
Additions
At 31 March 2013
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2012
Disposals

Land and buildings comprises Erf 714, on 8 Bismarck Street, Windhoek.
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Notes To The Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014

9.

2014

2013

N$

N$

Trade receivables

4 880 832

4 025 407

Sundry debtors

1 648 023

38 001

Trade and Other Receivables

Staff loans and advances

-

12 333

(124 000)

(54 000)

6 404 855

4 021 741

Past due for 1 – 30 days

-

-

Past due for 31 – 60 days

-

-

Past due for 61 – 90 days

-

-

124 000

54 000

124 000

54 000

Balance at the beginning of the year

54 000

-

Increase in provision recognised in comprehensive income

70 000

54 000

Provision for doubtful debt

Past due but not impaired

Past due for more than 90 days

Movement in provision for doubtful debt

Amounts written off during the year

-

-

124 000

54 000

Within one year

-

35 879

In the second to five years

-

-

-

35 879

The Board’s main customer is Nampower, for which the credit terms
are 30 days and no interest is charged on the trade receivable
balance at year end. The Board, therefore, believes that the trade
receivables are not impaired and the above provision for doubtful
debt sufficiently covers the risk of default.

10.

Finance Lease
At the reporting date, the Board had finance lease commitments
under non-cancellable finance lease for its office equipment, which
fall due as follows;

11.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade creditors
Accruals

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days and no
interest is charged on the trade payables balance as at year end.
The Board has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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767 156

530 802

12 318 305

9 170 834

13 085 461

9 701 636

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2014
2014

2013

N$

N$

12. Trust Funds - Mme Projects
Balance at beginning of year

2 396 425

2 303 931

Funds received

245 419

92 821

Disbursements

(2 641 844)

(327)

-

2 396 425

Balance at end of year

MME Projects consist of various projects that are administered by the Board on behalf of the Ministry of Mines and Energy. These funds
form part of the bank and cash balance and are kept in a separate bank account.

13. Retirement Benefits for Employees
Retirement benefits are provided for employees through an independent
retirement fund known as Namflex Pension Fund.  The retirement fund is
governed by the Namibian Pension Funds Act and is a defined contribution
plan. All permanent employees qualify for the retirement benefits. Current
year contributions to retirement benefits amounted to N$ 1 358 830 (2013:
N$ 1 245 977).  
The total value of contributions to the fund during the year amounted to:		
Employee contributions

467 525

Employer contributions

891 305

409 329
836 648

1 358 830

1 245 977

According to Alexander Forbes, the latest financial review for the fund is as
at 28 February 2013.

14.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

14.1 Categories of financial instruments				
Financial assets
Trade receivables

6 404 855

4 021 741

Bank balances and cash

43 934 255

34 085 957

Loans and receivables

50 339 110

38 107 698

13 085 461

9 737 515

-

2 396 425

13 085 461

12 133 940

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Trust funds
Liabilities at amortised cost

14.2 Interest rate management
As part of the process of managing the Board’s interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics of new borrowings and the refinancing of
existing borrowings are positioned according to expected movements in interest rates. The Board currently has no exposure to interest
rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing borrowings.
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14.

Financial Instuments and Risk Management (continued)

14.3 Credit risk management
The Board only deposits cash surpluses with major banks and investment houses of high quality credit standing.
The granting of credit is made on application and is approved by management. At year-end the Board did not consider there to be any
significant concentration of credit risk which has not been adequately provided for.

14.4 Liquidity risk management
The Board has minimised its liquidity risk by ensuring adequate facilities and reserve borrowing capacity.

14.5 Liquidity and interest risk tables
The table below summaries the Board’s exposure to liquidity and interest rate risk:
2014
Average

1-3

3 months –

1-5

effective

months

1 year

years

Total

Interest rate

N$

N$

N$

N$

Financial Assets
Trade and other receivable

0%

6 404 855

-

-

6 404 855

3.61%

43 934 255

-

-

43 934 255

		

50 339 110

-

-

50 339 110

Bank balances and cash

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

0%

13 085 461

-

-

13 085 461

Trust funds

0%

-

-

-

-

		

13 085 461

-

-

13 085 461

2013
Average

1-3

3 months –

1-5

effective

months

1 year

years

Total

Interest rate

N$

N$

N$

N$

Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables

0%

4 021 741

-

-

4 021 741

3.29%

34 085 957

-

-

34 085 957

		

38 107 698

-

-

38 107 698

Bank balances and cash

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

0%

9 737 515

-

-

9 737 515

Trust funds

0%

2 396 425

-

-

2 396 425

		

12 133 940

-

-

12 133 940
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14.

Financial Instuments and Risk Management (continued)

14.5 Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
Fair value
The directors are of the opinion that the book value of financial instruments approximates their fair value, as the items are of a shortterm nature.

14.6 Capital risk management
The Board manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
by ensuring that economic value is added throughout. The capital structure consists of accumulated funds and cash and cash equivalents.

14.7 Market risk management
The Board’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Refer to note 14.2 for detail on how the Board
manages interest rate risk. There has been no change to the Board’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures risk.

15. Commitments
At the reporting date, the Board had outstanding lease commitments under
non-cancellable operating lease for its office equipment, which fall due as
follows;

16.

Within one year

29 730

14 332

In the second to five years

51 849

42 997

81 579

57 329

(448 349)

(407 655)

47 697 984

38 226 913

47 249 635

37 819 258

8 970 421

4 849 913

Related Parties
The Board regards RERA, Government and other parastatals as related
parties. The following were the transactions entered into during the year:
Regional Electricity Regulator of Southern Africa (RERA)
Subscription fees (membership)
Nampower (Levy income)

Compensation of key management personnel
Short-term benefits
Post-employment
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472 459

444 364

9 442 880

5 294 277
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17.

2014

2013

N$

N$

12 107 931

9 066 956

Reconciliation of Surplus Before Taxation
to Cash Utilised by Operations
Surplus before taxation
Adjusted for:
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of fixed assets

(46 089)

29 917

Depreciation

619 987

482 808

-

(32 463)

Insurance proceeds
Interest received

Working capital changes
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
CASH UTILISED BY OPERATIONS
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(1 407 287)

(924 248)

11 274 542

8 622 970

1 000 711

2 482 509

(2 383 114)

(2 287 678)

3 383 825

4 770 187

12 275 253

11 105 479

Detailed Statement Of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2014
2014

2013

N$

N$

INCOME
Levies received
Licence fees
Interest received

47 697 984

38 226 913

556 500

617 500

1 407 287

924 248

Other income

831 370

32 463

TOTAL INCOME

50 493 141

39 801 124

Advertising

309 906

371 018

Audit fees- current year

133 458

113 611

4 793

10 880

Provision for doubtful debt

70 000

54 000

Bank charges

50 420

34 063

Computer expenses

63 553

116 310

EXPENDITURE

- prior year

Computer software expenses

189 273

149 783

2 778 640

451 003

Depreciation

619 987

482 808

Members’ fees

496 787

305 426

Donations

276 566

119 932

Entertainment

215 513

243 040

Conference and seminar expenses

Foreign exchange losses
Insurance
Legal and professional fees

18 930

35 350

137 332

122 938

1 439 819

1 065 916

Licences and permits

1 212

1 728

Light, heat and water

180 738

173 395

96 693

29 917

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Maintenance

406 379

53 184

Office expenses

117 769

100 382

-

57 528

Penalties
Postage and couriers

17 327

4 424

318 852

383 865

Project costs

7 314 217

5 732 481

Recruitment and staff training

1 786 164

613 304

Printing and stationary

Reference and resource material
Rent – equipment
Rent - office
Salaries and other staff costs

-

16 055

237 279

213 912

80 291

-

18 432 645

16 078 282

Security services

109 861

110 629

Subscriptions

674 745

470 318

1 146 293

2 513 590

Subsistence and travelling – staff members
– Board members
Telephone and fax
Vehicle expenses

224 781

84 918

218 298

270 023

216 689

150 155

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

38 385 210

30 734 168

SURLPUS FOR THE YEAR

12 107 931

9 066 956

Other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
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-

4 137 025

12 107 931

13 203 981

